& Herefordshire
O Council

Agenda

Licensing Sub-Committee

Date:  Thursday 21 December 2023

Time: 2.00 pm

Place: Online Meeting/Conference Room 1, Herefordshire
Council Offices, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 OLE

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Matthew Evans
Tel: 01432383690
Email: matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format, please call Matthew Evans on 01432383690 or e-mail
matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Licensing Sub-
Committee

Membership

Councillor Polly Andrews

Councillor Bruce Baker
Councillor Richard Thomas



Herefordshire Council 21 DECEMBER 2023

Agenda
Pages
PUBLIC INFORMATION

THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive apologies for absence.

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place
of a Member of the committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of interests from members of the committee in
respect of items on the agenda.

4. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the following item will not be, or is likely
not to be, open to the public and press at the time it is considered.

RECOMMENDATION: that under section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the following
item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Schedule 12(A) of
the Act, as indicated below and it is
considered that the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information.

7 Information relating to any action taken
or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or
prosecution of crime.

RECOMMENDATION: that under Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing
Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the
public be excluded from the meeting as it is
considered that the public interest in doing
so outweighs the public interest in the
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking
place in public.

5. REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE FOLLOWING AN | 11 - 46
EXPEDITED/SUMMARY LICENCE REVIEW IN RESPECT OF: THE
CROWN & SCEPTRE INN, MARKET PLACE, ROSS-ON-WYE,
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 5NX

To consider an application for a review, following an expedited/summary
licence review, of a premise licence in respect of: The Crown & Sceptre Inn,
Market Place, Ross-on-Wye, Herefordshire, HR9 5NX







The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

¢ Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

e Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING

Please note that the council will be making a recording of this public meeting. These
recordings form part of the public record of the meeting and are made available for members
of the public via the council’s website.

To ensure that recording quality is maintained, could members and any attending members
of the public speak as clearly as possible and keep background noise to a minimum while
recording is in operation.

Please also note that other attendees are permitted to film, photograph and record our public
meetings provided that it does not disrupt the business of the meeting.

If you do not wish to be filmed or photographed, please identify yourself so that anyone who
intends to record the meeting can be made aware.



Please ensure that your mobile phones and other devices are turned to silent during the
meeting.

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the
reporting to ensure that they comply.



Licensing Hearing Flowchart

Introduction

Discussion

Report by council

e Outline of application
e Summary of issues

A 4

Parties address committee using
spokesman if necessary

A 4
Applicant addresses committee

A 4

Members of committee can ask
guestions

A 4

Cross examination generally not
permitted.

A 4

All parties to have equal maximum
length of time to speak.

A 4

Note: hearing may be adjourned or
heard in party’s absence.







. Herefordshire
O Council

The Seven Principles of Public Life

(Nolan Principles)

1. Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

2. Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work.
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve
any interests and relationships.

3. Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit,
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

4.  Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

5. Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear
and lawful reasons for so doing.

6. Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.

7. Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They

should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to
challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

Marshall, Caroline (Democratic Services Officer) P@ge 1 13/12/23
Version number 3






AGENDA ITEM 5

Document is Restricted

11






Document is Restricted

17






Document is Restricted

21






Document is Restricted

31






Document is Restricted

33






12. Summary reviews

12.1

12.2

Summary reviews can be undertaken when the police consider that the premises
concerned is associated with serious crime or serious disorder (or both). The summary
review process, set out under sections 53A-53D of the 2003 Act, allows interim
conditions to be quickly attached to a licence and a fast track licence review. The
provisions were inserted by section 21 of the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 and
amended by sections 136-137 of the Policing and Crime Act 2017, including the addition

of section 53D.

The powers apply only where a premises licence authorises the sale of alcohol. They do
not apply in respect of other premises licences, or to premises operating under a club
premises certificate. The powers are aimed at tackling serious crime and serious
disorder, in particular (but not exclusively) the use of guns and knives. The powers
complement the general procedures in the 2003 Act for tackling crime and disorder
associated with licensed premises and should be reserved for the most serious matters
which cannot be adequately or otherwise redressed unless urgent action is taken.
Separate powers in the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 provide for
the instant closure of premises by the police in some circumstances (in essence,
disorder or nuisance). The consequent review of premises licences by the licensing
authority is provided for by section 167 of the Licensing At 2003.

Application for summary review

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Section 53A of the 2003 Act sets out who may apply for an expedited review and the
circumstances in which it can be used. The application is made by, or on behalf of, the
chief officer of police and must be made in the form which is set out in Schedule 8A to
the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations

2005 (S| 2005/42).

The completed application must be accompanied by a certificate issued by a senior
officer of the rank of superintendent or above. The certificate is a formal note which
identifies the licensed premises and includes a signed statement by the senior officer
that in his/her opinion the premises is associated with serious crime, serious disorder or
both. This form is not prescribed in legislation. However, a sample form which forces
may wish to adopt is published on gov.uk.

The tests to determine the kinds of conduct that amount to serious crime are set out in
section 81(2) and (3) of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. Those tests
are that the conduct:

(a) constitutes an offence for which a person who is 21 years of age or over with no
previous convictions could reasonably be expected to be sentenced to imprisonment for

3 years or more; or

(b) Involves the use of violence, results in substantial financial gain or is conduct by a
large number of persons in pursuit of a common purpose.

There is no definitive list of behaviours that constitute serious disorder, and the matter is
one for judgment by the local police. The phrase should be given its plain, ordinary
meaning, as is the case under section 12 of the Public Order Act 1986 in which it is also

Revised Guidang% issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 93



12.7

12.8

12.9

used.

In deciding whether to sign a certificate, the senior officer should consider the following
(as applicable):

+ The track record of the licensed premises concerned and whether the police have
previously had cause to give advice about serious criminal or disorderly conduct (or
the likelihood of such conduct) attributable to activities taking place on the premises.
It is not expected that this power will be used as a first response to a problem and
summary reviews triggered by a single incident are likely to be the exception.

+ The nature of the likely crime and/or disorder — is the potential incident sufficiently
serious to warrant using this power?

+ Should an alternative power be deployed? Is the incident sufficiently serious to
warrant use of the powers in Part 4, Chapter 3 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014, or section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016,
to close the premises? Or could the police trigger a standard licence review to
address the problem? Alternatively, could expedited reviews be used in conjunction
with other powers (for example, modifying licence conditions following the use of a
closure power)?

* What added value will use of the expedited process bring? How would any interim
steps that the licensing authority might take effectively address the problem?

It is recommended that these points are addressed in the chief officer’s application to
the licensing authority. In particular, it is important to explain why other powers or
actions are not considered to be appropriate. It is up to the police to decide whether to
include this information in the certificate or in section 4 of the application for summary
review. The police will also have an opportunity later to make representations in relation
to the full review. In appropriate circumstances the police might want to make
representations to the licensing authority suggesting that they modify the conditions of
the premises licence to require searches of customers for offensive weapons upon
entry. Under the powers in sections 53A to 53D, this could be done on an interim basis
pending a full hearing of the issues within the prescribed 28-day timeframe or for an
appropriate period determined by the licensing authority.

Similarly, the power could, where appropriate, be used to reduce the risk of injury
caused by glass by requiring the adoption of a safer alternative (but see paragraphs
12.15 and 12.16 below). However, it should always be borne in mind that the aim of the
powers is to provide a selective tool, to be used proportionately.

The licensing authority and interim steps pending the review
12.10 Within 48 hours of receipt of the chief officer's application, the licensing authority must

give the premises licence holder and responsible authorities a notice of the review and
should include a copy of the application for review and a copy of the certificate, and
must also consider whether it is necessary to take interim steps (place temporary
conditions on the licence). When calculating the 48 hour period any non-working day
can be disregarded™".

" This means that, for example, if the application was received at 3pm on a Friday, the 48 hour period would cover the
remaining 9 hours on that Friday and the remaining 39 hours starting on the Monday morning (provided it was not a bank
holiday). In this case the licensing authority would have to decide on interim steps by 3pm on the Tuesday.

94 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

38



12.11

12.12

12.13

12.14

12.15

12.16

The licensing authority may want to consult the police about the steps that it thinks are
necessary, pending the determination of the review, to address the immediate problems
with the premises, in particular the likelihood of serious crime and/or serious disorder.
The licensing authority may consider the interim steps without the holder of the
premises licence having been given an opportunity to make representations. This does
not, of course, mean that the licensing authority cannot afford such an opportunity if it
thinks it appropriate and feasible to do so in all the circumstances.

The determination of interim steps is not a matter that may be delegated to an officer of
the licensing authority. The relevant decisions are likely to be taken by a licensing sub-
committee rather than the full committee. It should also be noted that there is no
requirement for a formal hearing in order to take interim steps. This means that the
relevant sub committee members can communicate by telephone or other remote
means in order to reach a decision. A written record should always be produced as
soon as possible after a decision is reached.

The interim steps that the licensing authority must consider taking are:

 the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

+ the exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence;
+ the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence; and
» the suspension of the licence.

Modification of the conditions of the premises licence can include the alteration or
modification of existing conditions or addition of any new conditions, including those that
restrict the times at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place.

If the licensing authority decides to take steps at the initial interim stage:

« the decision takes effect immediately, or as soon after it as the licensing authority
directs; but

« the licensing authority must give immediate notice of its decision and its reasons for
doing so to the holder of the premises licence and the chief officer of police who
made the application. The 2003 Act does not specify that the immediate notice has to
be in writing. However, in an individual case the licensing authority may consider that
the need for immediate communication at least initially requires a non-written
approach, such as a telephone call. This may happen when, for example, the
authority decides that the decision should have immediate effect. In such a case, the
decision and the reasons for it should be explained clearly and in full to the licence-
holder (or someone who may properly act for the licence-holder), and the call
followed up as soon as possible with a written version of the decision and the
reasons (for example, by email or fax) which is identical to, or not significantly
different from, the version given by telephone.

The licensing authority, in deciding when its decision on interim steps should take effect,
should consider the practical implications of compliance in relation to the premises. For
example to comply with a modification of the conditions of a licence that requires
employment of door supervisors, those running the premises may need some time to
recruit appropriately qualified and accredited staff.

In addition, very careful consideration needs to be given to interim steps which would
require significant cost or permanent or semi-permanent adjustments to premises which

Revised Guidar})gs issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 95



would be difficult to remove if the outcome of the subsequent full review was to withdraw
or modify those steps. For example, making structural changes, installing additional
CCTV or replacing all glassware with safer alternatives may be valid steps, but might be
disproportionate if they are not likely to be deemed necessary following the full review
(or any subsequent appeal). The focus for interim steps should be on the immediate
measures that are necessary to prevent serious crime or serious disorder occurring.

Making representations against the interim steps

12.17 The premises licence holder may make representations against the interim steps taken
by the licensing authority. There is no time limit for the premises licence holder to make
representations on the interim steps, although in practice this would at some point be
superseded by the full review which would have to be completed within 28 days of the
application being received by the licensing authority. On receipt of such representations,
the licensing authority must (if the representations are not withdrawn) hold a hearing
within 48 hours of their receipt. When calculating the 48 hour period, any non-working
day can be disregarded. Where the licensing authority has already held a hearing to
consider representations against the interim steps, the holder of the licence may only
make further representations if there has been a material change in circumstances.

12.18 The licensing authority must give advance notice of the hearing to the premises licence
holder and the chief officer of police. Given that these measures are designed to deal
with serious crime and/or serious disorder on an interim basis only, the process is
designed to avoid delay and, as such, significant portions of the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (S| 2005/44) (which set out the usual processes governing
the conduct of licensing authority hearings) do not apply in order to streamline the
hearing process. One result of this is that the licensing authority cannot adjourn the
hearing to a later date if the licence holder fails to attend at the scheduled time, as is the
case under the normal review procedure. And as is the case with that procedure, the
licence holder does not have to be present for the hearing to take place. In addition,
there is no timescale for notifying the licence holder of the hearing under the modified
process, providing the notification takes place before the hearing is held. However, it is
imperative that the licence holder be given as much notice as is possible in the
circumstances to afford the holder a maximum practicable opportunity to prepare for
and attend the hearing. Licensing authorities should bear in mind that the usual
principles of public law decision-making will apply to interim determinations, in a form
that has regard to the statutory context of an expedited process.

12.19 At the hearing to consider representations against interim steps the licensing authority
must:

* consider whether the interim steps are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives; and

 determine whether to withdraw or modify the steps taken.
12.20 When considering the case the licensing authority must take into account:

* the senior officer’s certificate that accompanied the application;
+ the chief officer's representations (if any); and
* any representations made by the premises licence holder.

96 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
40



12.21

There is no right of appeal to a magistrates’ court against the licensing authority’s
decision at this stage.

The review of the premises licence under section 53C

12.22

12.23

12.24

12.25

12.26

The licensing authority must hold a full review of the premises licence and determine the
review within 28 days after the day of receipt of the chief officer’s application. There can
be no adjournment of the hearing or delay in reaching a determination beyond the end
of the 28 day period. This must take place even if the chief officer asks to withdraw his
application or representations. At the review hearing, the licensing authority must
consider what steps are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives,
consider any relevant representations, and review the interim steps already taken (if

any).
In making its final determination the steps the licensing authority can take are:

+ the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

+ the exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
 the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;

« the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and
+ the revocation of the licence.

Modification of the conditions of the premises licence can include the alteration or
modification of existing conditions or addition of any new conditions, including those that
restrict the times at which licensable activities authorised by the licence can take place.

The licensing authority must:

 advertise the review inviting representations from any persons for no less than seven
consecutive days, by notice as described in regulation 38 of the Licensing Act 2003
(Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 (S| 2005/42)
and, if applicable, on the licensing authority’s website (see regulation 38(1)(b) of the
above). The relevant notices should be published on the day after the day of receipt
of the chief officer’s application.

+ advertise that any representations which the premises licence holder, responsible
authority or any other person want the licensing authority to consider at the review
hearing, should be submitted to the licensing authority within 10 working days of the
advertisement of the review appearing.

« give formal notice of the hearing no later than five working days before the day or first
day on which the hearing is to be held to the premises licence holder and to every
responsible authority.

A party shall give to the licensing authority a notice no later than two working days
before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held stating —
« whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing;

» whether he considers a hearing to be unnecessary.

« whether he would like permission for any other person (other than the person he
intends to represent him at the hearing) to appear at the hearing and, if so, explain on
which points that person will be able to contribute.

Revised Guidan&i issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 97



12.27 The regulations relating to hearings are set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005 (S.1. 2005/44). They apply to final hearings under the section
53A(2)(b) in a similar way to hearings following closure orders under section 167 of the
2003 Act (it should be emphasised that the truncated version of the hearings regulations
described in paragraph 12.18 above applies to interim hearings only). The issues they
address include who can make representations and what those representations can be
about. It is therefore possible for responsible authorities or any other persons to make
representations in relation to any of the licensing objectives, not just crime and disorder.
Similarly, where it is in the public interest, the regulations relating to the exclusion of
individuals from hearings, or conducting the hearing in private, will apply.

12.28 The licensing authority must notify its decision and the reasons for making it to:

+ the holder of the premises licence;
* any person who made relevant representations; and
+ the chief officer of police who made the original application.

Review of the interim steps under section 53D

12.29 The licensing authority’s determination does not have effect until the end of the 21 day
period given for appealing the decision, or until the disposal of any appeal that is lodged
(see below information on right of appeal). To ensure that there are appropriate and
proportionate safeguards in place at all times, the licensing authority is required to
review any interim steps that it has taken that are in place on the date of the hearing
and consider whether it is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives for
the steps to remain in place, or if they should be modified or withdrawn. The review of
the interim steps should take place immediately after the determination under section
53C has been reached. In making its decision, the licensing authority must consider any
relevant representations made.

12.30 In conducting the review of the interim steps the licensing authority has the power to
take any of the steps that were available to it at the initial stage (see paragraph 12.13).
Any interim steps taken at the review hearing apply until—

(a) the end of the period given for appealing against a decision made under section 53C
(21 days),

(b) if the decision under section 53C is appealed against, the time the appeal is
disposed of, or

(c) the end of a period determined by the relevant licensing authority (which may not be
longer than the period of time for which such interim steps could apply under (a) or (b)
above).

Right of appeal against review of interim steps decision

12.31 The licence holder or the chief officer of police may appeal against the decision made
by the licensing authority concerning its review of the interim steps to a magistrates’
court. The appeal must be made within 21 days of the appellant being notified of the
licensing authority’s decision and must be heard by the magistrates’ court within 28
days beginning with the day on which the appellant lodged the appeal.

98 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
42



Right of appeal against final review decision

12.32 An appeal against the final review decision may be made to a magistrates’ court within
21 days of the appellant being notified of the licensing authority’s determination on the
review. An appeal may be made by the premises licence holder, the chief officer of
police and/or any other person who made relevant representations.

12.33 The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have effect
until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the disposal of the appeal.

12.34 Where appeals are lodged both against the decision following the review of the interim
steps and against the final determination, the courts may decide to consider the appeal
against the final determination within the 28 day period, allowing the interim steps
appeal to be disposed of at the same time.

Flow diagram of the summary review process

12.35 The following flow diagram summarises the process.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 99



44



€002 10V Buisusol 8y} 40 Zg| UONI9S Japun panss| 8ouepIng pasiAsy | 001

Junoo sAep Bupyom AluQ -
Ayoyine Buisusor -

"obejs yoes je Ajuoyine Buisusal| Aq epew suoisiosp uo Buipuadap ‘Jou op Jo ‘anupuod sdajs wieU]

"shep gz uiypm
unoo sejelisibely

m LT ulypm) sdejs
m Aq pJeay si sdais

|1 wusu Bunuiuoo |
“A,U“ Jsulebe [eadde !

waul Jsuiebe
|eadde Auy

os|e ued Jap|oy
82U89I| pue 821|104

‘(sdeys wusyul
Buinuiuod jsuiebe

[eadde Aue yum
uoiounfuod ul pjay ‘(shep Lz uiypm)

‘Peiipow

JO umelpyym
AH_ 9q p|noys a2e|d ui

uoleUIwISIeP A,H_

99 Aew 1nqg) unos m ATlll_m uoIsiosp malnal
Aq papiosp Buiwi] ' jsuiebe [eadde o}

[eul4
Unoo ssjessibely | sanied |12 4o by mﬂwﬁ%__\_,\,m%_wmm
co_m_om\wn%mww pUE Sousol S
2= : (pouad jey; sasjwald ay)
_-.ﬁmm_w.m.m._.m.omﬁmm .>.c.,cu i Burnp vm_mmaacm malnsl MH shep A A !

sso|un) sAep Lz AIII_ 87 UMM Bl ey i 1

Jaye 109)e saye} [N PIOY 3SNW 7] _ "

UOISIO8P MBINSY l R—
T S T SRR |
i ‘(souBjswWNaIo J“ : "
| urebueyo r-------- “
m jeusjew e sy L
! 8Jay) Ssajun 82uo m "(uoneaydde
| Ajuo) senosfqo L-— - oo 1 Buinisoal
| Buisusoy ! " 0 . sinoy ‘(enoge Jo
“ 8y} Jo uoowoud | ! 8 uIyum Juspusjuliadns)
m ay} Jo} syeudoidde | i i i L S— . 9q Isnwi) Jadiyo
: ale sda)s m “ 'sda)s sdajs wusyul Joluss Aq paubis
: wusurssyym 1 1 wsyul jsuiebe m aye) 0} 9]edlIuao
; Japisuco 0} | | suopejussaidal “A[ Aessaoau s| A,H_ UM ‘M3IABI
m ¢, SINOY 8 UIynm “A,H_“ oyew ued | 1§l SIspisuod Aewwns
! Buresy spjoy v m m Jap|oy s2ua2I m o a Joyj uonjeoljddy

HEeUOMOJ} M3IASI Alelling



46



	Agenda
	 Public Information
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	 The Nolan Principles
	5 Review of a premises licence following an expedited/summary licence review in respect of: The Crown & Sceptre Inn, Market Place, Ross-on-Wye, Herefordshire, HR9 5NX
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


